

Grievance Policy and Procedure



Document Control Information	
Finance and Resources Committee	04 June 2024
Approved by the Board of Management:	12 June 2024
Date of Next Review:	31 July 2027

The Board of Management (or any person/group with delegated authority from the Board) reserves the right to amend this document at any time should the need arise following consultation with employee representatives. This Policy has been subject to an Equality Impact Assessment this can be accessed on: Policies and Reports - Glasgow Kelvin College

Table of Contents

	Grievance Policy	Page Number	
1	Introduction	1	
2	Scope	1	
3	Principles	1	
4	Confidentiality	2	
5	Right to be Accompanied	3	
6	Records	3	
7	Malicious Grievances	4	
8	External Assistance	4	
9	Overlapping Grievance and Disciplinary Proceedings	4	
	Grievance Procedure		
1	Informal Procedure	5	
2	Formal Procedure	5	
2.1	Communication	6	
2.2	Investigation	7	
2.3	Grievance Meeting	7	
2.4	The outcome of an Investigation	8	
3	Grievance Stage One Appeal	9	
3.1	Grounds for Appeal	10	
3.2	Appointment of person hearing Appeal	10	
3.3	Outcome of the Appeal	11	
3.4	Grievance Stage Two Appeal	12	
4	Collective Grievance	13	
4.1	Definition of Collective Grievance	13	
4.2	Procedure	13	
4.2.1	Informal Procedure	13	
4.2.2	Formal Collective Grievance	13	
4.2.3	Collective Grievance Appeal Stage One	14	
4.2.4	Collective Grievance Appeal Stage Two	15	
Table 1	Grievance Referral Guide	17	
Table 2	Grievance Raised Against	18	
Appendix	1– Grievance Form	19	
Appendix	2– Grievance Stage One Appeal	22	
Appendix	Appendix 3 – Grievance Stage Two Appeal 24		
Appendix	Appendix 4 – Collective Grievance 26		
Appendix 5 – Collective Grievance Stage One Appeal 29			
Appendix	Appendix 6 – Collective Grievance Stage Two Appeal 31		

Grievance Policy

1. Introduction

Glasgow Kelvin College (the "College") has designed this Policy and Procedure to be used by individual employees to ensure issues that they wish to raise related to their work, working environment and/or working relationships within the College are dealt with consistently and settled fairly, efficiently and as near to the point of origin as possible. A grievance raised by two or more employees will be handled in accordance with the College's collective grievance process contained within this Grievance Policy and Procedure at section 4.

The College is keen to provide a positive and supporting working environment for all of its employees.

The Grievance Policy and Procedure has been developed taking into account the ACAS Code of Practice on Disciplinary and Grievance Procedures and it is designed to help managers, employees and their representatives' deal with and resolve grievances which arise in the workplace.

2. Scope

This Policy and Procedure applies to all employees of the College and provides a mechanism for grievances to be dealt with promptly, fairly and consistently. The College encourages a policy of open communication and consultation when problems and concerns arise in the workplace. Employees should try to resolve any grievance informally with their line manager, who is identified on their Statement of Particulars, or the individual(s) concerned in the first instance prior to instigation of the formal procedures outlined below.

3. Principles

- The College will seek to resolve issues at the lowest possible level of the procedure (where appropriate) and informal action may be considered, where appropriate, to resolve matters.
- The College will make every effort to deal with and resolve grievances as quickly as possible and at the appropriate management level.
- No decisions on the outcome of a formal grievance will be made before the matter has been fully investigated.
- All employees have the right to express a grievance relating to their employment. A grievance may be raised by an individual, a couple of individuals or collectively where a group or groups of employees are affected by the same work related issue. If two or more employees have an identical grievance they can use the procedure outlined in section 4 to

raise a collective grievance. Employees using this procedure collectively cannot then raise an individual grievance on the same issue.

- Where working relationships are a factor in any grievance, additional support will be considered and, if appropriate, will be offered for example where employees wish to take part in mediation to resolve matters.
- Any matters relating to a collective dispute raised by Trade Union representatives on behalf of all staff within the staff group whom they represent, should be raised in accordance with the Recognition and Procedures Agreement (the "RPA"). The procedure within the RPA should be followed.
- At all formal stages of the grievance process, parties have the right to be accompanied by a Trade Union representative or an official employed by a Trade Union or a workplace colleague.
- If an informal grievance is raised verbally which subsequently is taken forward as a formal grievance, the details must be recorded in writing before proceeding.
- During the formal Grievance Procedure, the individual raising the grievance, and any person against whom a grievance has been submitted, will have the opportunity to state their case.
- A grievance hearing is not the same as a disciplinary hearing, and is an opportunity for discussion and dialogue which may produce a satisfactory resolution to the complaint.
- At no stage in the procedure can any party record a meeting or hearing, using audio or video recording equipment, without the prior agreement of all present.
- An employee who is dissatisfied with the outcome or remedy proposed in the first instance will have a right of appeal.
- The College's Equality and Diversity policy will be observed in relation to all grievance related processes.

4. Confidentiality

At all stages of a grievance, those involved in the grievance and/or the investigation must bear in mind the need for confidentiality in order to preserve the integrity of the process and out of respect for those involved. However, this does not preclude employees from discussing the matter with their staff representative or with the Employee Counselling Service.

5. Right to be accompanied

All employees, whether it is the person raising the grievance or the individual whom the grievance is against or a witness, have the right to be accompanied to meetings forming part of the formal grievance process (including investigation meetings and appeals) by either a Trade Union representative, an official employed by a Trade Union or a or workplace colleague. The companion will be permitted to address the meeting to put and sum up the employee's case, respond on behalf of the worker to any views expressed and confer with the employee during the meeting, but will not be entitled to answer questions on behalf of the person raising the grievance, address the hearing if the person raising the grievance does not wish it or prevent the person against whom the grievance is raised from explaining their case.

To exercise the statutory right to be accompanied the person raising the grievance must make a reasonable request. The person raising the grievance should provide enough time for the College to deal with the companion's attendance at the meeting and make clear in advance the name of the companion where possible and whether the individual is a Trade Union representative, an official employed by the Trade Union or a work colleague.

Those who are being interviewed as part of the investigation are also entitled to ask to be accompanied by a Trade Union representative, an official employed by a Trade Union or a workplace colleague. Any request to be accompanied should be reasonable.

6. Records

Notes of formal meetings will be taken and it will not be a verbatim record. Copies of these notes will be given to the relevant parties present within five (5) working days of the meeting, where possible. The person raising the grievance or those providing a statement will be given the opportunity to comment on the accuracy of the notes within five (5) working days of receiving them. It is normally expected that all documentation including witness statements will be shared with relevant parties (except where the College has to withhold some information to protect a witness or due to another legal requirement). Witnesses shall be informed that any information they provide may be shared with the person raising the grievance.

Records will be treated as confidential and kept in accordance with the College's Retention Schedule and the General Data Protection Regulation and the Data Protection Act 2018 which gives employees the right to request and have access to certain personal data.

Records will include:

the nature of the grievance;

- what was decided and actions taken;
- the reason for the actions taken;
- whether an appeal was lodged;
- the outcome of the appeal; and
- any subsequent developments.

Notes of informal meetings may also be taken where appropriate.

7. Malicious Grievances

The purpose of the grievance procedure is to ensure that the appropriate channels are available through which employees can raise genuine concerns.

Where, after an investigation, a grievance is found to be vexatious or malicious, or where there is a continued pattern of unfounded complaints by the same employee, the person raising the grievance may be subject to investigation under the College's Disciplinary Policy and Procedure and subject to disciplinary action, which could in some circumstances lead to dismissal, if there is sufficient evidence to support such action. Further guidance and advice can be obtained by speaking to Human Resources.

8. External Assistance

The College reserves the right to recruit assistance from an external source to assist with the resolution of a grievance, depending on the nature of the issue and the exigencies of the service, for example an external mediator or other suitably qualified individual or organisation. This will be with the mutual agreement of both parties where appropriate.

9. Overlapping Grievance and Disciplinary Proceedings

If the person raising the grievance raises a grievance during a disciplinary process, the disciplinary process may be temporarily suspended in order to deal with the grievance. However, it may be appropriate to deal with the two concurrently if they are related, there is no obligation on the College to suspend a disciplinary process pending the outcome of a grievance process; this is merely an option open to it.

Grievance Procedure

1. Informal Procedure

Employees should try to resolve their grievance informally with their line manager, who is identified on their Statement of Particulars, or with the individual(s) concerned in the first instance prior to proceeding to the formal procedure. The employee should request a meeting with the line manager or the employee concerned as soon as possible after the issue has arisen or occurs. In circumstances where the grievance is against the employee's line manager, the employee can approach their next line manager or another manager, in a similar position, in the College.

If it is not possible to resolve a grievance informally then the employee will have the right to raise the matter through the formal procedure. Employees may seek advice from a member of management at an appropriate level, a Human Resources representative or a representative of their Trade Union.

If the employee wishes to raise the matter formally they should do so without unreasonable delay and the procedure outlined below should be followed.

Only in exceptional circumstances will an employee be able to proceed directly to the formal procedure without having first attempted to resolve the matter informally.

2. Formal Procedure

Any formal grievance relating to an employee's work, working environment or working relationships should be raised with the appropriate manager in accordance with the Grievance Referral Guide, Table 1. This manager will be the Investigating Officer.

A formal grievance must be set down in writing detailing the nature of the alleged grievance on a Grievance Form, appendix 2 and submitted to the appropriate manager identified in Table 1.

When submitting a formal grievance, the employee should include a concise summary of the issue(s); specify the outcome they are seeking; and the steps they have taken to resolve the issue informally or an explanation as to why this was not possible.

Where employees have difficulty expressing themselves because of language or other difficulties they may seek assistance from their trade union representative, from a workplace colleague or Human Resources to submit the grievance.

The manager upon receipt of a formal written grievance should inform Human Resources and arrange a meeting to discuss the matter/take advice within five (5) working days.

In certain circumstances where a grievance raised refers to a change, for example in working practices, the status quo may be maintained until the grievance procedure is exhausted. This will exclude matters involving Health and Safety or a breach of legislation.

2.1 Communication

The manager who is acting as the Investigating Officer should write to the person raising the grievance without unreasonable delay to confirm the arrangements for a grievance meeting, advise them how they intend to manage the process, the stages involved and their right to be accompanied to the grievance meeting by a Trade Union representative, an official employed by a Trade Union or a workplace colleague. The grievance meeting will be held without unreasonable delay after the College has received the grievance.

All reasonable steps shall be taken to ensure that the procedure progresses as efficiently as is reasonably practicable. Any delay to the procedure will be identified and communicated as timeously as possible to concerned parties.

In the event that the person raising the grievance can identify a conflict of interest or a sufficient reason that the Investigating Officer delegated to hear the grievance should not be involved they should notify the Director of Human Resources. The Director of Human Resources shall advise within seven (7) working days as to whether this conflict of interest necessitates another manager hearing the grievance.

All parties involved should make every effort to attend the grievance meeting.

If a complainant or their Trade Union representative or official employed by a Trade Union or workplace colleague is unable to attend on a proposed date the person raising the grievance can suggest another date so long as it is reasonable and is not more than five (5) working days, beginning with the first working day after the date originally proposed by the Investigating Officer. This five (5) day time limit may be extended by mutual agreement but within a reasonable timescale.

The person against whom the grievance is raised, will be invited to meet with the Investigating Officer who will advise them that a grievance has been submitted, they will provide the person against whom the grievance is raised with either a copy of the written grievance, or inform them of the content relating to them and

outline the stages involved in the process, so that the person against whom the grievance is raised is fully informed of the grievance raised against them.

The Investigating Officer should recognise the potential distress that a formal grievance can cause for a respondent, and therefore must act with sensitivity when letting them know about the grievance raised against them.

The person against whom the grievance is raised should also be made aware of their right to seek support from their Trade Union and, where appropriate, the <u>Employee Counselling Service</u>.

At all stages of a grievance, those involved in the investigation must bear in mind the need for confidentiality in order to preserve the integrity of the process and out of respect for any other colleagues involved. However, this does not preclude employees from discussing the matter with their representative, or with the Employee Counselling Service.

2.2 Investigation

The Investigating Officer will invite the person raising the grievance to a meeting to hear their grievance and this will take place as soon as reasonably practicable. Once they have had heard the content of the grievance they may wish to interview others, and this will be done through separate meetings.

A Human Resources Representative shall be present at all formal meetings of the Grievance Procedure.

2.3 Grievance Meeting

The Investigating Officer shall open the meeting by introducing all parties present and by stating the role of the participants. In normal circumstances this will include:

2.4 the Investigating Officer;

- the employee and their Trade Union representative or official employed by a Trade Union or a workplace colleague; and
- ii. a Human Resources representative to provide advice and support to the Investigating Officer and take notes.

The Investigating Officer shall secure the agreement of the parties present that all deliberations will remain strictly confidential.

The person raising the grievance will be invited to explain their grievance and how they would like to see it resolved. In all circumstances any information must

be related directly to the facts of the grievance. The Investigating Officer should sum up the main points at the conclusion of the meeting.

If the Investigating Officer reaches a stage in the meeting where they require to seek advice or feel that further investigation is necessary the meeting should be adjourned to get advice or make further investigation. The meeting should be reconvened within an agreed timescale and as soon as reasonably practicable.

The Investigating Officer will meet with the person against whom the grievance is raised separately who will be informed of the content of the grievance and provided with the opportunity to respond. The person against whom the grievance is raised will be informed that a copy of their statement may be provided to the employee during the process. The person against whom the grievance is raised has the right to be accompanied by a Trade Union representative, an official employed by a Trade Union or a workplace colleague and should be advised accordingly. The Investigating Officer should sum up the main points at the conclusion of the meeting.

The Investigating Officer has the right to consult, individually or collectively, all concerned parties and to undertake further such discussions or investigation deemed appropriate at his/her discretion prior to issuing a formal response to the findings of the meeting. Witnesses and concerned parties will be informed that a copy of their statement may be provided to the person raising the grievance at some stage during the investigation or process.

The Investigating Officer will be required to examine the evidence and to base their decision on the evidence available. They will endeavour to establish the facts of the case as thoroughly as possible and to exercise judgement in the event of any of the facts remaining in dispute. In such circumstances any conclusions must be reached on the basis of the balance of probabilities. The Investigating Officer will produce a report detailing their findings; the basis for their decision; and any recommendations where appropriate to resolve the grievance.

The outcome of the grievance will be issued in writing along with the report as soon as reasonably practicable and if possible within ten (10) working days of the grievance meeting. Any delay with the issuing of the grievance response will be identified and communicated as timeously as possible to all concerned parties.

2.5 The outcome of an Investigation

The outcome could be that:

i) the grievance is not upheld, and no further formal action will be taken;

- ii) only part of the grievance is upheld, and part not upheld and any appropriate action will be taken;
- iii) the grievance is upheld in full, and appropriate action will be taken.

If a grievance has been upheld and it may have an impact on working relationships the Investigating Officer should meet with the line manager/individual to confirm their decision and invite them to discuss the implications in relation to any further potential action.

Further action in these circumstances may include for example:

- i) mediation;
- ii) training and/or development activities; and
- iii) coaching or mentoring.

In most cases the College would expect the Investigating Officer's decision to be final and for the matter to come to a close. However, in some circumstances the person raising the grievance may remain aggrieved and they can appeal against the decision or remedy proposed by the Investigating Officer concerned.

The person raising the grievance should be advised of their right to appeal and informed of the next stage of the procedure in accordance with the Grievance Referral Guide, Table 1.

Where a grievance has not been upheld and the person raising the grievance has not appealed against the decision the Investigating Officer should ensure that all employees involved in the process are aware that it has been brought to an end.

3. Grievance Stage One Appeal

In the event that the person raising the grievance feels that their grievance has not been satisfactorily resolved they may appeal in writing using the Grievance Stage One Appeal Form, appendix 3. The person raising the grievance should inform the Director of Human Resources in writing of their intention to submit an appeal within five (5) working days of receiving the written decision of the grievance. The completed Grievance Stage One Appeal Form should be submitted within ten (10) working days of receipt of the written decision of the grievance. The Grievance Appeal Form should state the grounds of the appeal and should be submitted to the Director of Human Resources who will advise the appropriate senior manager as indicated in Grievance Referral Guide, Table 1 (the "appeal manager"). The appeal will be heard as soon as reasonably

practicable, normally not later than three weeks after the appeal has been lodged. If necessary, this time limit may be extended through mutual agreement.

The College should write to the person raising the grievance without unreasonable delay to confirm the arrangements for an appeal hearing, including the date on which it will be heard and the place it will be heard.

Prior to any appeal meeting the employee will be reminded of their right to be accompanied by a Trade Union representative, or official employed by a Trade Union or a workplace colleague.

3.1 Grounds for Appeal

Grounds of appeal will normally come under one of the headings set out below although there may be other relevant grounds of appeal not mentioned which may be considered by the College.

- Relevant new evidence not previously considered: This is where the employee can provide relevant new evidence which was not available at the time of the original investigation.
- Breach of procedure: This is where the employee identifies areas of the procedure which were not followed and which could have influenced the final outcome.
- **Decision or remedy unreasonable**: This is where the employee considers that the decision or remedy is unreasonable.

3.2 Appointment of person hearing Appeal

A senior manager (the "appeal manager") will be appointed to hear the appeal in accordance with the Grievance Referral Guide, Table 1 and will be given access to all paperwork generated from the original grievance. Wherever possible the appeal manager will not be the Investigating Officer and will not otherwise have been involved in the grievance previously.

The person raising the grievance will be provided with copies of the evidence relied upon by the Investigating Officer prior to the appeal meeting.

The appeal manager must decide if the appeal is a rehearing of the original grievance or simply an evaluation of the evidence and the fairness of the decision taken. A rehearing may be considered appropriate for example where there has been an alleged procedural error earlier in the process.

The appeal manager may decide to carry out further investigation, if necessary, including further meetings with the parties involved, before they are able to make a decision. Witnesses and concerned parties will be informed that a copy of their

statement may be provided to the person raising the grievance at some stage during the appeal process.

A member of Human Resources will provide appropriate support and advice for the appeal manager throughout the process. A member of Human Resources will attend the appeal meeting to provide advice and support to the appeal manager and to take notes.

3.3 Outcome of the Stage One Appeal

The outcome of the appeal meeting will be issued in writing as soon as reasonably practicable, and if possible within ten (10) working days of the appeal meeting. In addition to issuing the outcome in writing, the appeal meeting may be reconvened to explain any action which the College intends to take. The purpose of the reconvened meeting is not for the appeal manager to explain in detail why they reached the decision or put forward the proposed remedy. The reconvened meeting is to afford the employee the opportunity to discuss the decision or remedy proposed not how the decision or remedy was reached.

The possible outcomes of the appeal are as follows:

- Appeal upheld;
- Appeal partially upheld;
- Appeal not upheld.

If the person raising the grievance remains dissatisfied with the response they may intimate their continuing dissatisfaction in writing on Grievance Stage Two Appeal Form, appendix 4 within ten (10) working days of receipt of the outcome of the appeal at stage one. The Grievance Stage Two Appeal Form should be submitted to the Director of Human Resources who will inform the appropriate senior manager as indicated in the Grievance Referral Guide, Table 1 (the "second appeal manager")

The appeal process timescale will commence once the person raising the grievance has confirmed to the Director of Human Resources of that they have received the appropriate Grievance Stage Two Appeal Form.

The person raising the grievance may only submit a second appeal and proceed to Stage Two of the procedure on the basis of:

- a breach of the procedure during Stage One;
- relevant new evidence being submitted which was not available to the appeal manager in the course of Stage One of the appeal procedure; and/or

• the employee feels that the decision of the Stage One appeal is perverse or unreasonable.

3.4 Grievance Stage Two Appeal

Upon receipt of the Grievance Stage Two Appeal Form a meeting shall be arranged by the appropriate manager (but not necessarily take place) within five (5) working days. The person raising the grievance shall be informed in advance of the date, time and place of the meeting.

If a stage two appeal is to be heard by an ad hoc Committee (as detailed in Table 1) of the Board of Management the employee should still submit the Grievance Stage Two Appeal Form to the Director of Human Resources. A meeting of the ad hoc committee shall normally be arranged (but not necessarily take place) within ten (10) working days. The meeting shall take place within a reasonable time scale however this will be dependent upon the availability of Board Members. The person raising the grievance shall be informed in advance of the date, time and place of the meeting.

An ad hoc Committee of the Board of Management shall comprise of three members, to include a Chair or Vice Chair of a standing committee. The Chair of the Board, the Principal, Staff Representatives and Student Representatives shall be excluded from such a Committee.

The person raising the grievance will be required to provide the second appeal manager or ad hoc Committee hearing the stage two grievance appeal, in addition to the Grievance Stage Two Appeal Form, copies of all forms and correspondence connected with the grievance to which they have access. The appeal manager will provide details of what steps have been taken or proposed to resolve the issue.

The appeal process timescale will commence upon once the person raising the grievance has confirmed to Human Resources that they have received the appropriate Grievance Stage Two Appeal Form.

The appeal meeting will be conducted in line with section 2.3. The person raising the grievance will be reminded of their right to be accompanied by a Trade Union representative, an official employed by a Trade Union or workplace colleague. At the conclusion of Stage Two there is no further right of appeal and the decision made at this stage is final.

4. Collective Grievance

A collective grievance is defined as a grievance held in common by two (2) or more members of staff who are not members of a recognised Trade Union. Staff using this procedure must be aware that they cannot then use the Individual Grievance Procedure for raising the same issue.

Any matters relating to a collective dispute raised by Trade Union representatives on behalf of all staff with the staff group whom they represent should be raised in accordance with the Recognition and Procedures Agreement (the "RPA"). For the purposes of the RPA, a collective grievance is defined as a grievance held in common by two (2) or more members of staff represented by a recognised Trade Union and supported by a College Branch Office Bearer. Where such a collective grievance arises relating to terms and conditions of employment, the procedure within the RPA should be followed.

4.1 Definitions

Issues that may cause a collective grievance could include problems concerning terms and conditions of employment or working practices, health and safety, working relationships, bullying and harassment and/or discrimination.

This list is not exhaustive or exclusive.

4.2 Procedure

4.2.1 Informal – Collective Stage

A collective grievance should, in the first instance, be raised with the immediate supervisor/manager who should discuss the issue and make appropriate arrangements to investigate. As a general rule, a response will be provided within seven (7) working days. If the grievance involves the line manager it should be raised with the line manager's manager in accordance with the Grievance Referral Guide, Table 1. One representative from the group of staff raising the grievance should raise it with the manager on behalf of those involved.

4.2.2 Formal – Collective Grievance

If the grievance is not resolved informally to the satisfaction of the staff members concerned and they wish to take it further, then they must put their issue in writing using the Collective Grievance Form, appendix 5, to Human Resources who will advise the appropriate senior manager as indicated in the Grievance Referral Guide, Table 1. The matter may be presented to Human Resources by two representatives of the group of staff involved accompanied by their Trade Union representative or by two members of the Trade Union on behalf of that staff group.

The written submission must cover the following points:

- The specific cause of the grievance;
- The specific staff involved in the grievance (not necessarily by name but in enough detail, i.e. job titles, locations etc. for it to be quite clear who is affected and who is not); and
- The name(s) of the representative(s) nominated or elected by the staff to act as their spokesperson/s. A meeting will be arranged as soon as possible, or at least within ten working days, when the staff representative(s) and management will meet to discuss what can be done to settle the grievance. The staff representatives will be informed in advance of the meeting of the date, time and place of the meeting.
- The meeting will be conducted in line with section 2.3.

4.2.3 Collective Grievance Appeal Stage One

If still unresolved, the employees may appeal in writing using the Collective Grievance Stage One Appeal Form, appendix 6. The employees should inform the Strategic Management Team in writing of their intention to submit an appeal within five (5) working days of receiving the written decision of the collective grievance. The completed Collective Grievance Stage One Appeal Form should be submitted within ten (10) working days of receipt of the written decision of the collective grievance.

Grounds of appeal will normally come under one of the headings set out below although there may be other relevant grounds of appeal not mentioned which may be considered by the College.

- Relevant new evidence not previously considered: This is where the employees can provide relevant new evidence which was not available at the time of the original investigation.
- Breach of procedure: This is where the employees identify areas of the procedure which were not followed and which could have influenced the final outcome.
- **Decision or remedy unreasonable**: This is where the employees consider that the decision or remedy is unreasonable.

A written record of the meeting held according to section 4.2.2 should be agreed and sent to the Strategic Management Team who will arrange an appeal. The

appeal panel will consist of a member of the Strategic Management Team and two members of the Operational Management Team (OMT).

The appeal meeting will take place as soon as possible following the process in section 4.2.2 and no later than two weeks after receipt of the written outcome of the formal stage. The staff and staff representatives will be informed in writing in advance of the appeal meeting of the date, time and place of the meeting.

The purpose of this panel will not be to rehear the original grievance, unless this will remedy any earlier procedural deficiencies or there is another compelling reason to do so, but to consider any new facts or information which could change the previous decision on the grievance.

The appeal meeting will be carried out in accordance with section 2.3.

Following the appeal meeting the decision will be notified in writing to the staff concerned and their representative(s).

If management and the staff members concerned are unable to resolve the dispute through stage one of the appeal procedure, staff members may submit a second appeal and proceed to the Collective Grievance Appeal Stage Two of the procedure on the basis only of the following:

- a breach of the procedure during the Collective Stage One Appeal;
- relevant new evidence being submitted which was not available to the appeal panel in the course of Collective Grievance - Stage One of the procedure; and/or
- the staff members feel that the decision of the appeal panel is perverse or unreasonable.

4.2.4 Collective Grievance Appeal Stage Two

Upon receipt of the Collective Grievance Stage Two Appeal Form, appendix 7 a meeting shall be arranged (but not necessarily take place) within five (5) working days. The staff and their representatives shall be informed of the date, time and place of the meeting.

If the Stage Two Appeal is to be heard by an ad hoc Committee (as detailed in Table 1) of the Board of Management the staff members should still submit the Collective Grievance Appeal Stage Two form to the Director of Human Resources. A meeting of the ad hoc committee shall normally be arranged (but not necessarily take place) within ten (10) working days. The meeting shall take

place within a reasonable time scale however this will be dependent upon the availability of Board Members. The staff and their representatives the appeal shall be informed in advance of the date, time and place of the meeting.

An ad hoc Committee of the Board of Management shall comprise of three members, to include a Chair or Vice Chair of a standing committee. The Chair of the Board, the Principal, Staff Representatives and Student Representatives shall be excluded from such Committee

The staff members will be required to present the grievance to the panel at the hearing and any evidence. Any written documentation must be submitted in advance of the hearing to the Director of Human Resources no later than 3 days prior to the hearing. Management will provide any ad hoc Committee hearing the grievance, in addition to the Collective Grievance Appeal Form Two copies of all forms and correspondence connected with the grievance. The appeal panel will provide details of what steps have been taken or proposed to resolve the issue.

The appeal process timescale will commence once the employees or their representatives have confirmed to Human Resources that they have received the appropriate Collective Grievance Appeal Stage Two form.

The appeal meeting will be conducted in line with section 2.3.

Following the collective stage two appeal meeting the decision will be notified in writing to the staff concerned and their representative(s).

If the parties are unable to resolve the issue(s) through the Collective Stage Two appeal then the parties may agree to seek conciliation or arbitration through a mutually agreed independent third party. Failure to reach agreement on selection of a third party will result in referral to the Advisory, Conciliation and Arbitration Service (ACAS).

All parties to any dispute should, wherever possible, reach agreement on interim arrangements to allow work to continue while the procedure is being followed.

In certain circumstances where a collective grievance raised refers to a change, for example in working practices, the status quo may be maintained until the grievance procedure is exhausted. This will exclude matters involving Health and Safety or a breach of legislation.

Table 1 - Grievance Referral Guide

Note

Aggrieved Employee	Informal Stage	Formal Stage	Stage 1 - Appeal	Stage 2 - Appeal
Principal	Chair of Board of Management	Ad hoc Committee of the Human Resources Committee	Ad hoc Committee of the Board of Management	Executive Committee
Vice Principal	Identified in the employees Statement of Particulars	Ad hoc committee (Human Resources Committee)	Ad hoc committee (Board of Management)	Executive Committee
Head of Faculty or Director	Identified in the employees Statement of Particulars	Vice Principal or Principal (or nominated member of the Board)	Principal or Ad hoc committee (Human Resources Committee)	Ad hoc committee (Human Resources Committee) or Ad hoc committee (Board of Management)
Senior Curriculum Manager or Head of Department/Faculty	Identified in the employees Statement of Particulars	Head of Department/Faculty, Director or Vice Principal	Director or Vice Principal Principal	Vice Principal, Principal or Ad hoc committee (Human Resources Committee)
Curriculum Manager or Line Manager	Identified in the employees Statement of Particulars	Senior Curriculum Manager, Head of Department/Faculty or Director	Head of Department/Faculty, Director or Vice Principal	Director or Vice Principal
Lecturers or Support Staff	Identified in the employees Statement of Particulars	Curriculum Manager, Senior Curriculum Manager, Head of Department/Faculty or equivalent from another Support Department	Head of Department/Faculty or Vice Principal	Head of Department/Faculty, Vice Principal or Principal
All Staff - Collective	Identified in the employees Statement of Particulars	Senior Management Team – panel consisting of two members	Senior Management Team – panel consisting of two members	Ad hoc committee (Human Resources Committee) or Ad hoc committee (Board of Management)

An ad hoc Committee of the Board of Management shall comprise of three members, to include a Chair or Vice Chair of a standing committee. The Chair of the Board, the Principal, Staff Representatives and Student Representatives shall be excluded from such Committee. It may be agreed by all parties to deviate from the above structure under certain circumstances.

Table 2 – Grievance Raised Against

Grievance Raised Against	Informal Stage	Stage 1	Stage 1 - Appeal	Stage 2 - Appeal
Principal	Principal	Ad hoc committee of Human Resources Committee	Ad hoc Committee of Board of Management	Executive Committee
Vice Principal	Vice Principal	Principal	Ad hoc committee of Human Resources Committee	Ad hoc Committee of Board of Management
Director or Vice Principal	Director or Vice Principal	Vice Principal or Principal	Principal or Ad hoc committee of Human Resources Committee	Ad hoc committee of Human Resources Committee or Ad hoc Committee of Board of Management
Head of Faculty or Head of Department	Head of Faculty or Head of Department	Director or Vice Principal	Vice Principal or Principal	Principal or Ad hoc committee of Human Resources Committee
Line Manager, Curriculum Manager or Senior Curriculum Manager	Line Manager, Curriculum Manager or Senior Curriculum Manager	Senior Curriculum Manager, Head of Faculty, Head of Department or Director	Head of Faculty, Director or Vice Principal	Director, Head of Faculty, Vice Principal or Principal
Lecturer Support Staff	Lecturer Support Staff	Line Manager, Curriculum Manager or Senior Curriculum Manager	Senior Curriculum Manager, Head of Faculty, Head of Department or Director	Head of Faculty, Director or Vice Principal

Note

An ad hoc Committee of the Board of Management shall comprise of three members, to include a Chair or Vice Chair of a standing committee. The Chair of the Board, the Principal, Staff Representatives and Student Representatives shall be excluded from such Committee.

Grievance Form

Application for Consideration of Grievance.

You should in the first instance aim to resolve a grievance informally with your line manager or as near the point of origin as possible. **Employee Name:** Job Title: Section/Faculty: Trade Union (where applicable): Nature of Grievance: Full details - you must set out the nature of the grievance and the basis for it providing as much information as possible including date(s), time(s) and the name(s) of any individual(s) concerned. This should include references to incidents, documents and evidence where possible. Continue on a separate sheet if necessary. Prior to invoking the formal procedure you should first have tried to resolve the matter informally. What steps did you take to attempt to resolve the grievance informally?

Manager's Name:	Date of meeting(s):
If you have not taken steps to resolve the so?	ne issue informally what were your reasons for not doing
	held with your line manager or the individual(s) concerned
What steps do you feel could be taken b	by the College to assist to resolve this complaint?
Evidence	
Documentation in support of grievance	attached Yes/No
If no, why not?	
List documents and purpose:	
Name of Witness(es) to be interviewe	ed, if any.
Name:	
Relevance of evidence (brief outline):	Title:

Name:	Title:	
Relevance of evidence (brief outline):		
Name:	Title:	
Relevance of evidence (brief outline):		
Name	Title.	
Name:	Title:	
Relevance of evidence (brief outline):		
I apply for my grievance to be formally in Grievance Procedure.	nvestigated under Stage 1 of Glasgow Kelvin College	S
My representative will be:		
Employee's signature:		
Date:		

Grievance Stage One Appeal

Application for Consideration of Grievance at Stage One Appeal.

You have the right to appeal and to proceed to Stage One Appeal of the Grievance Procedure on the following grounds:

- you can demonstrate a breach of the procedure during the Formal Grievance process;
- you have relevant new evidence which was not available during the course of the formal grievance procedure; and/or
- you feel that the decision is perverse or unreasonable.

There may be other grounds of appeal which the College would consider.

You should submit your appeal within ten working days of receipt of the grievance decision or proposed remedy.

Employee Name:	
Job Title:	
Department/Faculty:	
Trade Union (Where applicable	e):
Nature of Appeal	
I wish to progress my grieva the following grounds.	ance to Stage One Appeal of the grievance procedure on
	sion or proposed remedy stated in form Grievance Form and remedy on the following grounds (continue on a separate

I will submit in writing by (date):
any questions for the investigating officer or witnesses; and
any documentation relevant to my case.
I apply for my grievance to be considered under Stage One – Appeal
My representative will be:
Employee's signature:
Date:

The Grievance Form Stage 1 or a copy of your original letter stating the grounds for your grievance must be attached along with any other or documentation.

Grievance Stage Two Appeal

Application for Consideration of Grievance at Stage Two - Appeal.

You have the right to appeal and to proceed to Stage Two Appeal of the Grievance Procedure on the following grounds:

- you can demonstrate a breach of the procedure during the Appeal Stage One;
- you have relevant new evidence which was not available during the course of the Appeal Stage One of the procedure; and/or
- you feel that the decision is perverse or unreasonable.

You should submit your appeal within ten working days of receipt of the appeal, stage one decision or proposed remedy.
Employee Name:
Job Title:
Department/Faculty:
Frade Union (Where applicable):
Nature of Appeal
wish to progress my grievance to Stage Two - Appeal of the grievance procedure or he following grounds.
am dissatisfied with the decision or proposed remedy and appeal against the decision or remedy on the following grounds (continue on a separate sheet if necessary):

I will submit in writing by (date):
 any questions for the investigating officer, stage one appeal manager or witnesses; and
any documentation relevant to my case.
I apply for my grievance to be considered under Appeal Stage Two
My representative will be:
Employee's signature:
Date:
The Grievance Form and the outcome of the Appeal Stage One or a copy of your original letter stating the grounds for your grievance must be attached along with any other documentation.
I understand and accept that at the conclusion of the Appeal Stage Two there is no further right of appeal and the decision made at this stage is final.
Employee's signature:
Date:

Collective Grievance

Application for Consideration of Grievance.

Employees should in the first instance aim to resolve a grievance informally with their line manager or as near the point of origin as possible.

Employee Names:	
Job Title(s):	
Section/Faculty:	
Trade Union (where applicable):	
Nature of Grievance:	
Full details - staff must set out the nature of the providing as much information as possible inclindividuals concerned. This should include refewhere possible. Continue on a separate sheet	uding date(s), time(s) and the names of any erences to incidents, documents and evidence
Prior to invoking the formal procedure the serior to the matter informally.	staff group should first have tried to
What steps did the staff members take to atten	npt to resolve the grievance informally?

Manager's Name:	Date of meeting(s):
If you have not taken steps to resolve the is doing so?	ssue informally what were the reasons for not
What was the result of any discussions held concerned in this connection?	d with your line manager or the individual(s)
What steps do you feel could be taken by th	ne College to assist resolve this complaint?
Evidence	
Documentation in support of grievance atta	ached Yes/No
If no, why not?	
List documents and purpose:	
Name of Witness(es) to be interviewed, i	if any.
Name:	Title:
Relevance of evidence (brief outline):	

Name:	Title:	
Relevance of evidence (brief outline):		
	T:0	
Name:	Title:	
Relevance of evidence (brief outline):		
Name:	Title:	
Relevance of evidence (brief outline):		
We apply for our grievance to be formally investigated under the Collective Grievance Procedure of Glasgow Kelvin College.		
Our representative will be:		
Employees' signature:		
Date:		

Collective Grievance Stage One Appeal

Application for Consideration of Grievance at Stage One Appeal.

You have the right appeal and to proceed to Stage One Appeal of the Grievance Procedure on the following grounds:

- you can demonstrate a breach of the procedure during the Grievance process;
- you have relevant new evidence being which was not available to the Chair in the course of the grievance procedure; and/or
- you feel that the decision is perverse or unreasonable.

Employee Names:

You should submit your appeal within ten working days of receipt of this decision or proposed remedy.

Job Title(s):	
Section/Faculty:	
Trade Union (where applicable):	
Nature of Appeal	
We wish to progress our collective grievand grievance procedure on the following ground	
We are dissatisfied with the decision or propos against the decision or remedy on the following necessary):	

We will submit in writing by (date):
any questions for the investigating officer or witnesses; and
any documentation relevant to our case.
We apply for our collective grievance to be considered under Grievance Appeal Stage One
Our representative will be:
Employees' signature:
Date:

The Collective Grievance Form or a copy of your original letter stating the grounds for your grievance must be attached along with any other or documentation, including the outcome response issued to you by management.

Collective Grievance Stage Two Appeal

Application for Consideration of Grievance at Stage Two Appeal

You have the right appeal and to proceed to Stage Two Appeal of the Grievance Procedure on the following grounds:

- you can demonstrate a breach of the procedure during the Grievance process;
- you have relevant new evidence being which was not available to the Chair in the course of the grievance procedure; and/or
- you feel that the decision is perverse or unreasonable.

Employee Names:

You should submit your appeal within ten working days of receipt of this decision or proposed remedy.

Job Title(s):		
Section/Faculty:		
Trade Union (where applicable):		
Nature of Appeal		
We wish to progress our collective grievand grievance procedure on the following ground		
We are dissatisfied with the decision or proposed remedy stated in the response and appeal against the decision or remedy on the following grounds (continue on a separate sheet if necessary):		

We will submit in writing by (date):
any questions for the investigating officer or witnesses; and
any documentation relevant to our case.
We apply for our collective grievance to be considered under Stage Two Appeal
Our representative will be:
Employees' signature:
Date:

The Collective Grievance Form or a copy of your original letter stating the grounds for your grievance must be attached along with any other or documentation, including the outcome response issued to you by management to your Collective Grievance and the outcome of the Grievance Appeal Stage One.